

### Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School

### **Finance Committee Meeting**

Published on September 30, 2022 at 1:47 PM EDT

#### Date and Time

Tuesday October 4, 2022 at 5:00 PM EDT

#### Location

PVPA Charter Public School Room 304 15 Mulligan Drive South Hadley, MA 01075

Google Meeting ID meet.google.com/zkg-vctu-ikb Phone Numbers (US) <u>+1 240-532-3788</u> PIN: 783 984 031#

Agenda	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			5:00 PM
A. Record Attendance		Marcy Conner	2 m
B. Call the Meeting to Order		Neil Hede	1 m
C. Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Neil Hede	7 m
Approve minutes for Finance Committee on June 9, 20	022		

II. Finance			5:10 PM
A. Membership	Vote	Marcy Conner	10 m

	Purpose	Presenter	Time
<b>B.</b> FY22 Audit Review by Powers & Sullivan	Vote	Marcy Conner	40 m

#### III. Other Business

IV. Closing Items			6:00 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Neil Hede	2 m

### Coversheet

### **Approve Minutes**

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: I. Opening Items C. Approve Minutes Approve Minutes

Minutes for Finance Committee on June 9, 2022



### Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School

### Minutes

Finance Committee

Date and Time Thursday June 9, 2022 at 5:00 PM

HOPI

Google Meeting ID meet.google.com/zkg-vctu-ikb Phone Numbers (US) <u>+1 240-532-3788</u> PIN: 783 984 031#

#### **Committee Members Present**

Andrea Nathanson (remote), Richard Pouliot (remote), Stephanie Burbine (remote)

**Committee Members Absent** Keith Black, Neil Hede

**Guests Present** Brent Nielsen, Marcy Conner (remote)

#### I. Opening Items

#### A. Record Attendance

#### B. Call the Meeting to Order

Andrea Nathanson called a meeting of the Finance Committee of Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School to order on Thursday Jun 9, 2022 at 5:01 PM.

C.

#### **Approve Minutes**

Stephanie Burbine made a motion to approve the minutes from Finance Committee on 05-05-22. Richard Pouliot seconded the motion. The committee **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll CallKeith BlackAbsentNeil HedeAbsentRichard PouliotAyeStephanie BurbineAyeAndrea NathansonAye

#### II. Finance

#### A. FY22 EOY Projection & Staff Bonuses

An FY22 EOY updated projection was provided - updated from the previous version provided in May with the FY23 budget. The previous surplus was projected at \$329,010.00 and the revised projection at \$397,743.81. Administration is making a proposal to give all staff currently employed on June 14, 2022 a one time bonus of \$1,000. The pandemic has challenged educators in new ways and the staff at PVPA met the challenge and kept students engaged in learning - this is a well deserved token of the communities appreciation.

The cost would be \$85,000 in bonuses and \$3,183 in taxes for a total of \$88,183. This would leave a projected surplus of \$309,590.81.

The discussion centered around congratulating the staff for the hard work done during unprecedented times of the pandemic. However, the Committee felt that there needed to be some differentiation between part-time and full time employees.

Andrea Nathanson made a motion to recommend that all employees on the payroll as of 6/14/22 receive a one-time bonus with those between .50 FTE and full-time receiving \$1,000 and part-time employees less than .50 FTE receiving \$500. Stephanie Burbine seconded the motion.

The committee **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Richard PouliotAyeNeil HedeAbsentStephanie BurbineAyeKeith BlackAbsentAndrea NathansonAye

#### B. FY23 Capital Budget Increase

A three year review of capital reserves was conducted in consideration of increasing the FY23 capital budget from \$111,500 to \$397,358 to include the architect's estimated cost of the 2nd and 3rd floor renovation projects. With the FY22 surplus estimated at \$310,000 and the requested increase of \$285,858, the three year yield is just shy of \$150,000. Projected reserves at the end of FY22 would be \$2.4 million.

The committee also recognized that the construction timeline might overlap FY23 and FY24. This assumption is based on the timeline of contractors being able to

receive goods and the school calendar - for this reason the bid is being crafted as the third floor being completed during the summer of 2022 and the 2nd floor as an add alternate with date to be determined.

The Infrastructure Committee will continue its work and inform the capital budget as needed to optimize needs and space at PVPA. Andrea Nathanson made a motion to Recommended increasing the FY23 capital budget from \$111,500 to \$397,358. Stephanie Burbine seconded the motion. The committee **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### Roll Call

Stephanie BurbineAyeKeith BlackAbsentAndrea NathansonAyeNeil HedeAbsentRichard PouliotAye

#### **III. Other Business**

#### A. Committee Membership

A brief discussion was had about committee membership for FY23. Andrea Nathanson will be resigning from the Board of Trustees and the Finance Committee effective June 30, 2022. Andrea indicated that she believed Neil Hede was interested on the Treasures position on the Board of Trustees and may be taking the Chair position for FY23.

Stephanie Burbine also indicated that she will no longer be with Florence Savings Bank and this was her last meeting. She will have FSB reach out to Marcy with a possible replacement.

Both committee members were thanked by the Administration for their service to the Finance Committee.

#### **IV. Closing Items**

#### A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 5:53 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Marcy Conner

#### Documents used during the meeting

- FY22 EOY Projection 6-6-22.pdf
- PVPA Cash Reserves 6-30-21.pdf
- PVPA Reserves vs Cap Spend 6-6-22.pdf

### Coversheet

### FY22 Audit Review by Powers & Sullivan

Section:II. FinanceItem:B. FY22 Audit Review by Powers & SullivanPurpose:VoteSubmitted by:DRAFT - PVPACPS FY2022 Financial Statements 9-27-22.pdf

## DRAFT

### PIONEER VALLEY PERFORMING ARTS CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL

### REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

### PIONEER VALLEY PERFORMING ARTS CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL

### **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### JUNE 30, 2022

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4
Financial Statements	9
Statements of Net Position	10
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	11
Statements of Cash Flows	12
Notes to Financial Statements	13
Required Supplementary Information	23
Pension Plan Schedule	24
Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability	25
Notes to Required Supplementary Information	26
Combining Statements	27
Combining Statement of Net Position	28
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position	29
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance	30
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance	31
Board Acceptance	34
Acceptance of the Board of Trustees	35

#### **Independent Auditor's Report**

The Board of Trustees Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School South Hadley, Massachusetts

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School, (a governmental entity) and its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School and the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School and the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc.'s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and, its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc., as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and, its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc., and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements**

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and, its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and, its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc.'s, internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
  accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
  statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School and, its blended component unit, the Friends of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc.'s, ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### **Other Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's financial statements. The combining financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2022, on our consideration of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control over financial control over financial reporting and compliance.

\_\_\_\_\_, 2022



# Management's Discussion and Analysis

#### PIONEER VALLEY PERFORMING ARTS CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS JUNE 30, 2022

This discussion and analysis of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's (PVPA) financial performance provides an overview of PVPA's financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements of PVPA, which begin on page 10.

#### The School as a Whole

PVPA was granted its charter on March 15, 1996, to operate as a public school in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The charter is awarded in five-year increments and is subject to renewal at the discretion of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The current charter expires June 30, 2026. During 2022, PVPA operated grades seven through twelve, and the enrollment at June 30, 2022 was 394 students. During 2021, PVPA operated grades seven through twelve and the enrollment at June 30, 2021 was 391 students. The enrollment limit for tuition reimbursement for both years was 400 students. PVPA is operating at capacity.

In accordance with the requirements of the *Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)*, PVPA presents financial information of the Friends of Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter School, Inc., (Friends) a related nonprofit organization, in its financial statements. GASB defines component units as legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship to a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Friends acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources of PVPA, primarily for the acquisition and maintenance of the School's facilities. Although PVPA does not control the timing or amounts of receipts from the Friends, the majority of the resources can only be used by or for the benefit of PVPA, the Friends is considered a component unit of PVPA and is presented in PVPA's financial statements. Because the Friends debt is expected to be paid entirely or almost entirely with the resources of PVPA, accounting standards require the Friends to be blended within the School's financial statements. The Friends activities are reported separately in the combining statements.

#### Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. In accordance with *Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements – Management's Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments* (GASB No. 34), the School is considered a special purpose government entity that engages in only business type activities. In accordance with GASB No. 34, as amended, the School issues a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and a Statement of Cash Flows. These statements provide information about the financial activities of the School, as a whole.

It should be noted that the condensed financial information presented in the following two tables presents the financial information of the PVPA and the Friends (collectively "the School") as blended.

#### Financial Highlights

- Operating revenues totaled \$8.0 million in 2022, of which 81% was from the State allocation for tuition, 9% was from nonemployer pension contributions, 8% was from federal and state grants, and 2% was from student activities and performing arts productions.
- Operating expenses for the period were \$7.4 million and consisted principally of personnel related costs (56%) and fringe and pension benefits (21%).

#### **Financial Statements**

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position include all assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the PVPA and the Friends. This activity is recorded using the accrual basis of accounting, under which all revenue and expenses are recognized when earned or incurred regardless of when the cash is received or paid. Additionally, these statements report the School's net position. The School's net position – the difference between assets and liabilities, represents one way to measure the School's financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the School's net position are one indicator of whether the School's financial health is improving or declining.

The following table presents condensed financial information of the School for the current and prior fiscal year.

	2022		2021
Assets:			
Current assets\$	3,714,277	\$	3,312,451
Capital assets	6,082,928		6,232,786
Total assets	9,797,205		9,545,237
Liabilities:			
Current liabilities (excluding debt)	387,776		560,254
Current debt	111,685		107,808
Noncurrent debt	3,259,262		3,368,941
Total liabilities	3,758,723		4,037,003
Net Position:			
Net investment in capital assets	2,711,981		2,756,037
Unrestricted	3,326,501		2,752,197
Total net position\$	6,038,482	\$	5,508,234
Operating Revenues:			
Charges for services\$	108,517	\$	11,370
Operating grants and contributions	7,899,797	Ŧ	8,096,202
Nonoperating Revenues:	, , -		-,, -
Unrestricted investment income	5,350		3,964
Contributions	51,651		16,390
Miscellaneous	39,716		8,499
Total revenues	8,105,031		8,136,425
Operating Expenses:			
Operating expenses	7,433,774		7,453,820
Nonoperating Expenses:			
Interest expense	124,927		121,735
Fundraising expense	16,082		1,167
Total expenses	7,574,783		7,576,722
Change in net position	530,248		559,703
Net position, beginning of year	5,508,234	<u> </u>	4,948,531
Net position, end of year\$	6,038,482	\$	5,508,234

On a combined basis, assets exceeded liabilities by \$6.0 million at the close of 2022. Net position of \$2.7 million represents the net investment in capital assets while \$3.3 million is unrestricted.

#### **Results of Operations**

Operations resulted in an increase in net position of \$530,000 of which a \$554,000 increase relates to PVPA operations, and a \$24,000 decrease relates to Friend's operations. The increase in PVPA's net position is primarily attributable to revenues coming in over budget by \$346,000. The most significant line-items that were over budget relate to the tuition per pupil paid by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and state and federal grants which exceeded the budget by \$328,000. PVPA's operating expenditures were under budget by \$204,000. The decrease in Friend's operations can primarily be attributed to depreciation on fixed assets.

#### **Capital Assets Activities**

The School capitalized \$157,000 of capital assets during the year, of which PVPA capitalized \$128,000 that was funded through operations. These additions included \$35,000 for a new public announcement system, \$23,000 for renovation design costs, \$23,000 for piano lab upgrades, \$18,000 for piano lab equipment, and \$29,000 for other capital additions. The Friends capitalized \$29,000 for the replacement of an HVAC unit.

#### Budget

Tuition revenue is projected based on the estimate of both new and returning students, by sending district, using Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) projected rates. Factored into these guidelines are historical trends along with a 400 student cap.

#### **Other Financial Factors**

PVPA entered into an operating lease agreement with the Friends and in accordance with the lease terms, PVPA is liable for 100% of all common area maintenance and insurance expenses for the premises. Refer to footnotes 5 and 7 for a full explanation of the terms of the current lease with the Friends and long-term debt financing.

#### Contacting the PVPA's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's finances and to show the accountability for the funds received. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer at the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School, 15 Mulligan Drive, South Hadley, MA 01075.



This page intentionally left blank.



# **Financial Statements**

#### STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

#### JUNE 30, 2022 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2021

	2022		2021
ASSETS			
CURRENT:	2 495 707	¢	2 040 554
Cash and cash equivalents \$ Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:	3,485,797	\$	3,048,551
Departmental and other	20,551		4,206
Intergovernmental	195,804		89,404
Prepaid expense	12,125		170,290
	12,120		170,200
Total current assets	3,714,277		3,312,451
NONCURRENT:			
Capital assets, nondepreciable	500,000		500,000
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation	5,582,928		5,732,786
Total noncurrent assets	6,082,928		6,232,786
TOTAL ASSETS	9,797,205		9,545,237
LIABILITIES			
CURRENT:			
Accounts payable	7,659		13,084
Accrued payroll	348,906		478,519
Accrued expense	8,811		29,132
Other liabilities	1,627		3,187
Unearned revenue	20,773		36,332
Bonds payable	111,685		107,808
Total current liabilities	499,461		668,062
NONCURRENT:			
Bonds payable	3,259,262		3,368,941
TOTAL LIABILITIES	3,758,723		4,037,003
NET POSITION			
Net investment in capital assets	2,711,981		2,756,037
Unrestricted	3,326,501		2,752,197
TOTAL NET POSITION \$	6,038,482	\$	5,508,234

See notes to financial statements.

Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School

#### STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TEAR ENDED JOINE 30, 2022	
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30	2021

	, ,		
-	2022	2021	
OPERATING REVENUES:			
State allocation - tuition\$	6,512,383	\$ 6,131	
Federal and state grants	673,740		,228
Student activities	25,262	7	,326
Transportation	68,128		
Nonemployer pension contributions	713,674	1,504	
Performing arts productions	15,127	4	,044
Total operating revenues	8,008,314	8,107	,572
OPERATING EXPENSES:			
Current:			
Personnel	4,163,137	3,857	,368
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits	841,142	698	,549
Pension benefits	713,674	1,504	
Advertising and recruiting	17,262	8	,564
Performing arts productions	92,852	45	,827
Classroom materials	43,437	33	,348
Technology	41,320	61	,786
Academic support	34,252	51	,255
Consultants and stipends	147,660	97	,710
Grants	214,153	123	,451
Professional fees	41,125	61	,519
Office supplies	5,181	4	,104
Testing/assessment	3,290	2	,738
Insurance	40,711	39	,066
Student activities	50,723	20	,948
Student transportation	177,064	134	,969
Depreciation	306,457	312	,000,
Food services	6,614	4	,987
Professional development	14,494	13	,493
Travel and meetings	5,051	1	,065
Utilities	74,428	68	,491
Memberships and subscriptions	46,422	34	,198
Maintenance - facilities	292,779	222	,153
Other	2,689		,760
Printing, copying and postage	26,748		,049
Payroll service/bank fee	22,833		,164
Nurse supplies	8,276		,506
Total operating expenses.	7,433,774	7,453	,820
Operating income (loss)	574,540	653	,752
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):			
Interest income	5,350	2	,964
Contributions	51,651		,3904
Other income	39,716		,499
Interest expense	(124,927)		,735)
Fundraising expense	(16,082)		,167)
	(10,002)	(1	,107)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net	(44,292)	(94	,049)
Change in net position	530,248	559	,703
Net position at beginning of year	5,508,234	4,948	,531
Net position at end of year \$ =	6,038,482	\$ 5,508	,234

See notes to financial statements.

#### STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20	121
WITH COMPANYING TOTALS FOR THE TEAK LINDED JUNE 30, 20	<u>,                                    </u>

Payments to employees       (4,292,750)       (3,848,52)         Payments to vendors       (2,119,647)       (2,011,12)         NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       743,939       685,44         CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       743,939       685,44         Contributions       51,651       16,33         Other income       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         Acquisition and construction of capital assets       (156,599)       (96,84)         Principal payments on bonds and notes       (107,802)       (119,70)         Interset expense       (112,927)       (119,72)         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,94         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,46         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND		_	2022	2021
Receipts from federal and state grants         551,781         396,15           Receipts from student activities         15,127         4,00           Receipts from student activities         25,262         7,33           Receipts from transportation         51,783         6,33           Payments to employees         (4,292,750)         (3,848,55)           Payments to vendors         (2,119,647)         (2,011,12)           NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         743,939         685,42           CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         51,651         16,33           Contributions         51,615         16,34         16,34           Other income         39,716         8,44         14,14           Fundraising expense         (16,082)         (1,14)           NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         75,285         23,72           CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (166,599)         (96,8           Principal payments on bonds and notes         (107,802)         (104,00)           Interest expense         (122,927)         (191,77)           NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         (387,328)         (320,66)           CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         (163,455,11)         2,666,02				
Receipts from programs.         15,127         4,0           Receipts from student activities.         25,262         7,33           Receipts from transportation.         51,783         6,33           Payments to employees.         (4,292,750)         (3,848,52)           Payments to vendors.         (2,111,647)         (2,011,12)           NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.         743,939         685,42           CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         743,939         685,42           Contributions.         51,651         16,33           Other income         39,716         8,44           Fundraising expense.         (16,082)         (1,11)           NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.         75,285         23,77           CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (16,6599)         (96,84           Principal payments on bonds and notes.         (107,802)         (104,00)           Interest expense.         (107,802)         (104,00)           Interest expense.         (122,927)         (119,72)           NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.         (387,328)         (320,64)           CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.         (107,802)         (104,00)           In		\$		, ,
Receipts from student activities         25,262         7,33           Receipts from transportation         51,783         6,33           Payments to employees         (4,282,750)         (3,845,57)           Payments to vendors         (2,119,647)         (2,011,12)           NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         743,939         685,43           Contributions         51,651         16,33           Other income         39,716         8,44           Fundraising expense         (16,082)         (1,11           NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         75,285         23,72           Contributions         51,651         16,33         06,84           Fundraising expense         (16,082)         (1,14           NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         75,285         23,72           Acquisition and construction of capital assets         (16,082)         (11,16)           Interest expense         (107,802)         (104,00)           Interest expense         (107,802)         (119,72)           Interest expense         (107,802)         (119,72)           Interest expense         (107,802)         (104,00)           Interest expense         (107,802)         (119,72)           Int	•			
Receipts from transportation         51,783         6,33           Payments to employees         (4,292,750)         (3,848,55)           Payments to vendors         (2,119,647)         (2,011,12)           NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         743,939         665,43           CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         51,651         16,33           Contributions         51,651         16,33         9,716           Other income         39,716         8,44         Fundraising expense         (16,082)         (1,10)           NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         75,285         23,72         23,72           CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         75,285         23,72           Acquisition and construction of capital assets         (16,082)         (11,40)           Interest expense         (122,927)         (119,72)           NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (387,328)         (320,64)           CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (387,328)         (320,64)           CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (387,328)         (320,64)           CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:         (387,328)         (320,64)           CASH FROM CASH EQUIVALENTS A			,	,
Payments to employees       (4.292,750)       (3.848,52)         Payments to vendors       (2.119,647)       (2.011,12)         NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       743,939       685,44         CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       743,939       685,44         Contributions       51,651       16,33         Other income       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         Acquisition and construction of capital assets       (156,599)       (96,84         Principal payments on bonds and notes       (107,802)       (104,00)         Interest expense       (122,927)       (119,72)         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,94         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,46         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND C	•			6,355
Payments to vendors       (2,119,647)       (2,011,12)         NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       743,939       685,43         CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       51,651       16,33         Other income       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       23,72         Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (16,65,599)       (96,88         Principal payments on bonds and notes       (107,802)       (114,00         Interest expense       (1122,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,94         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,46         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,03         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$       3,485,797       \$         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$				
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.       743.939       685.43         CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       51.651       16.33         Other income.       39.716       8.44         Fundraising expense       (16.082)       (1.16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75.285       23.72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75.285       23.72         Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (156.599)       (96.84         Principal payments on bonds and notes.       (107.802)       (104.00         Interest expense.       (122.927)       (119.73)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387.328)       (320.64         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387.328)       (320.64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5.350       3.94         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437.246       392.44         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3.048.551       2.656.02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$       3.048.551       2.656.02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$       3.048.551       2.656.02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR			,	,
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       51,651       16,36         Contributions.       51,651       16,36         Other income       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense.       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       75,285       (156,599)       (96,84         Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (107,802)       (140,40)       (142,927)       (119,73)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,64)       (320,64)         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,64)       (320,64)         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,43         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,03         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       \$       3,485,797       \$       3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$       574,540       \$       653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       cash from operating activities:       Depreciati		-	(2,110,047)	(2,011,122)
Contributions.       51,651       16,33         Other income.       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense.       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (156,599)       (96,84         Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (107,802)       (114,00       (112,927)       (119,73)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64       (320,64       (320,64       (320,64       (320,64       (327,246)       (320,64       (32	NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	_	743,939	685,453
Contributions.       51,651       16,33         Other income.       39,716       8,44         Fundraising expense.       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (156,599)       (96,84         Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (107,802)       (114,00       (112,927)       (119,73)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64       (320,	CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Fundraising expense.       (16,082)       (1,16         NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75,285       23,77         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (156,599)       (96,88         Principal payments on bonds and notes.       (107,802)       (104,06       (107,802)       (104,06         Interest expense.       (122,927)       (119,72)       (119,72)       (122,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,66       (320,66)         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,66)       (327,328)       (320,66)         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses).       5,350       3,96       (119,72)         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.       437,246       392,46       (232,66)       (238,48)         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       3,048,551       2,656,02       (2,656,02)       (3,645,797)       \$ 3,048,551       2,656,02       (2,651,797)       \$ 3,048,551       2,656,02       (2,651,797)       \$ 3,048,551       2,656,02       (2,651,797)       \$ 3,048,551       2,656,02       (2,651,797)       \$ 3,048,551       2,656,02       (3,645,797)       \$ 3,048,551			51,651	16,390
NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       75,285       23,72         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       Acquisition and construction of capital assets.       (156,599)       (96,84         Principal payments on bonds and notes.       (107,802)       (104,06         Interest expense.       (122,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64         CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses).       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.       437,246       392,45         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       cash from operating activities:       Depreciation.         Depreciation       306,457       312,00       Changes in assets and liabilities:       Departmental and other.       (16,345)       6,33         Departmental and other </td <td>Other income</td> <td></td> <td>39,716</td> <td>8,499</td>	Other income		39,716	8,499
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       (156,599)       (96,84         Acquisition and construction of capital assets       (107,802)       (104,06         Interest expense       (112,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (387,328)       (320,64         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       (387,328)       (320,64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,45         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,55         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       306,457       312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:       306,457       312,00         Departmental and other       (16,345)       6,33         Intergovernmental - grants       (106,400)       (61,56	Fundraising expense	_	(16,082)	(1,167)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets       (156,599)       (96,84         Principal payments on bonds and notes       (107,802)       (104,00         Interest expense       (122,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (387,328)       (320,64 <u>CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES</u> :       (387,328)       (320,64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,45         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,55         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       306,457       312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:       306,457       312,00         Departmental and other       (16,345)       6,33         Intergovernmental - grants       (106,400)       (61,545)	NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES	_	75,285	23,722
Acquisition and construction of capital assets       (156,599)       (96,84         Principal payments on bonds and notes       (107,802)       (104,06         Interest expense       (122,927)       (119,72)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (387,328)       (320,64 <u>CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES</u> :       (387,328)       (320,64         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,45         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,55         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       306,457       312,00         cash from operating activities:       Depreciation       306,457       312,00         Depreciation       (16,345)       6,33       6,33         Intergovernmental and other       (16,345)       6,33         Intergovernmental - grants       (106,400)       (61,545)				
Principal payments on bonds and notes			(156 500)	(96 847)
Interest expense       (122,927)       (119,73)         NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES       (387,328)       (320,64)         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS       437,246       392,43         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR       3,048,551       2,656,02         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       3,485,797       \$       3,048,551         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:       0         Operating income (loss)       \$       574,540       \$       653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       cash from operating activities:       306,457       312,00         Depreciation       306,457       312,00       Changes in assets and liabilities:       0       6,33         Departmental and other       (16,345)       6,33       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,345       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,34       6,345       6,34	•		,	(104,065)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.       (387,328)       (320,64)         CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses).       5,350       3,96         NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.       437,246       392,48         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       \$ 306,457       \$ 312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:       \$ 206,457       \$ 312,00         Departmental and other.       \$ (16,345)       6,32         Intergovernmental - grants.       \$ (106,400)       \$ (61,545)			,	(119,735)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:         Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)	NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES	-	· · ·	
Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)		-	(001,020)	(020,011)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.       437,246       392,45         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,551         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       \$ 306,457       \$ 312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:       \$ 202,01       \$ 6,35         Departmental and other.       \$ (16,345)       6,35         Intergovernmental - grants.       \$ (106,400)       \$ (61,55				
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.       3,048,551       2,656,05         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,55         CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.       \$ 3,485,797       \$ 3,048,55         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net       \$ 574,540       \$ 653,75         Changes in assets and liabilities:       306,457       312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:       (16,345)       6,33         Intergovernmental - grants.       (106,400)       (61,55)	Investment income from interest, dividends, and capital gains/(losses)	-	5,350	3,964
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR       \$ 3,485,797 \$ 3,048,55         RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH         FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:         Operating income (loss)         Operating income (loss)         Solution         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net         cash from operating activities:         Depreciation         306,457         Operating and there         (16,345)         6,38         Intergovernmental - grants	NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		437,246	392,492
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH         FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:         Operating income (loss)	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR	_	3,048,551	2,656,059
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:         Operating income (loss)\$ 574,540 \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net         cash from operating activities:         Depreciation	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR	\$_	3,485,797 \$	3,048,551
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:         Operating income (loss)         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net         cash from operating activities:         Depreciation         306,457         312,00         Changes in assets and liabilities:         Departmental and other         (16,345)         Intergovernmental - grants				
Operating income (loss)\$ 574,540 \$ 653,75         Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net         cash from operating activities:         Depreciation				
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net         cash from operating activities:         Depreciation		\$	574 540 \$	653 752
cash from operating activities:       306,457       312,00         Depreciation		Ψ_	φ	000,702
Depreciation306,457312,00Changes in assets and liabilities:Departmental and other(16,345)6,35Intergovernmental - grants(106,400)(61,58)				
Changes in assets and liabilities:Departmental and other			306 457	312 000
Departmental and other	-		000,101	012,000
Intergovernmental - grants			(16.345)	6,355
			,	(61,588)
Prenaid expense 158 165 (167 12	Prepaid expense.		158,165	(167,125)
				(107,123)
				8,840
				(39,247)
	•			(7,631)
				(7,031) (2,484)
(10,000) <u>(2,</u> 74		_	(10,000)	(2,104)
Total adjustments	Total adjustments	-	169,399	31,701
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         \$	NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	\$ _	743,939 \$	685,453

See notes to basic financial statements.

## DRAFT

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described herein.

#### A. Reporting Entity

The PVPA is a Commonwealth Charter School, established on March 15, 1996, by the granting of a charter by the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth), pursuant to Chapter 71, Section 89 of Massachusetts General Laws (MGL). Commonwealth Charter Schools are instrumentalities of the state, established and operated independently of any municipal or regional school committee. The Secretary's grant of a charter authorized the operation of a charter school for the period from 1996 to 2001. The initial charter has been renewed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education five times. The current charter expires in 2026. The PVPA is governed by a Board of Trustees (Board). The Board consists of fifteen to twenty voting members. The term of office of a Trustee is typically three years. The Trustees are elected from members of the PVPA community who have committed their time and energies to oversee the PVPA's mission and practice.

PVPA has one location in South Hadley, Massachusetts, and offers children in the Western Massachusetts area in grades seven through twelve a publicly supported education. The enrollment reported at June 30, 2022 was 394 students. The enrollment reported at June 30, 2021 was 391 students.

PVPA's mission is to offer its students intensive exposure to the performing arts within the context of an excellent college preparatory curriculum.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the PVPA and its component units. The PVPA has one component unit that requires inclusion in these financial statements.

The financial information of the Friends of Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School (Friends) is reported as a blended component unit within the PVPA's financial statements. The Friends is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization that acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources of the PVPA. Although the PVPA does not control the timing or amounts of receipts from the Friends, the majority of the resources or income thereon that the Friends holds is restricted to the activities of the PVPA. The Friends also issued debt for the purchase of the land and building upon which the PVPA's facilities are located. The loan payments are financed through rental income received from the PVPA. Because the Friends debt is expected to be repaid entirely with resources of the PVPA, the Friends is reported as a blended component unit within the PVPA's financial statements.

#### B. Tax Status

As a state-chartered organization, the PVPA is not subject to federal or state income taxes. Donors may deduct contributions to the PVPA within Internal Revenue Service regulations.

The Friends is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Friends is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributors to the Friends qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A). The Friends has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation under section 509(a)(2).

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### C. Financial Statement Presentation

The School, in accordance with *Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 – Basic Financial Statements – and Management's Discussion and Analysis, - for State and Local Governments* is a special purpose governmental entity that engages in only business type activities and, accordingly, the financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when earned and capital assets and expenses are recorded when received and incurred, respectively.

#### D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

#### E. Accounts Receivable

The School uses the allowance method for uncollectible accounts. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded for departmental and other receivables since management has deemed all receivables to be collectable.

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying expenses are incurred, and all other grant requirements are met. These receivables are considered 100% collectable and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Contributions receivable represent promises to give by donors and are considered to be 100% collectable and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectible accounts.

#### F. Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost, if purchased, or at the estimated fair value at the date of donation. All purchases and construction costs in excess of \$1,000 with expected useful lives of greater than one year are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

	Estimated Useful Life
Capital Asset Type	(in years)
Computer hardware and software	5-10
Furniture and equipment	5-10
Leasehold improvements	10-30
Buildings	40

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred outflows of resources*, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will *not* be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The School did not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred inflows of resources*, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will *not* be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The School did not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

#### H. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the School will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the School's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

#### I. Revenue Recognition

Student tuition and grant revenue are recorded as services are provided and costs are incurred. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Executive Office of Administration and Finance, calculates the per pupil tuition reimbursement which is paid to the school by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE).

The School records unrestricted contributions when they are received or unconditionally committed. The School reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted program funds if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets.

Funds received that are not earned as of year-end are recorded as a liability (unearned revenue).

#### J. In-Kind Services

The School occasionally receives contributed services from employees of the School. When received, the value of these services is included in the financial statements as donated services in private grants and contributions revenue, and salaries and wages. No in-kind services were received for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The School also receives donated services from a variety of volunteers. No amounts have been recognized in the financial statements since these services do not meet the criteria for recording in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### K. Expense Allocation

Expenses directly related to a program are distributed to that program. Other expenses are allocated based on management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program.

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

#### M. Fair Value Measurements

The School reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards. These standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets) and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques) to determine fair value. Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial instruments into a three-level hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in accordance with net asset value practical expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on lock up and notice periods associated with the underlying funds.

Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date. Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt securities, U.S. government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active markets.

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, are classified as Level 2 because fair values are estimated using pricing models, matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management judgment or estimation.

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics specific to the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect amounts reported in these financial statements. As of June 30, 2022, the School does not have any investments subject to fair value measurements.

#### N. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing educational experiences and instructional services that reflect PVPA's mission. Operating revenues and expenses include federal and state grant activity. Operating expenses also include educational costs, administrative costs, facilities costs, and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

### DRAFT

#### Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

#### O. Net Position

Net position reported as "net investment in capital assets" includes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

#### NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Statutes authorize the School to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, and bank deposits. In addition, there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and investments.

#### Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the School's deposits may not be returned to it. At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the School's deposits totaled \$3,485,797 and the bank balance totaled \$3,837,630. Of the bank balance, \$504,555 was covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and \$3,333,075 was covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund.

At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the School's deposits totaled \$3,048,551 and the bank balance totaled \$3,189,955. Of the bank balance, \$500,000 was covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and \$2,685,401 was covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund.

#### **NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS**

Capital asset activity of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

	Beginning Balance	Increases	Decreases	Ending Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated: Land\$	500,000	\$	\$\$	500,000
Capital assets:				
Building	4,166,000	28,421	-	4,194,421
Building addition	2,292,321	-	-	2,292,321
Building and design	353,218	22,675	-	375,893
Equipment and instructional materials	800,741	57,233	-	857,974
Leasehold improvements	991,447	48,270	-	1,039,717
Total capital assets being depreciated	8,603,727	156,599		8,760,326
Less accumulated depreciation for:				
Building	(1,614,325)	(104,150)	-	(1,718,475)
Building addition	(314,998)	(57,308)	-	(372,306)
Building and design	(53,438)	(9,491)	-	(62,929)
Equipment and instructional materials	(550,623)	(65,726)	-	(616,349)
Leasehold improvements	(337,557)	(69,782)		(407,339)
Total accumulated depreciation	(2,870,941)	(306,457)		(3,177,398)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	5,732,786	(149,858)		5,582,928
Total capital assets, net \$	6,232,786	\$ (149,858)	\$\$	6,082,928

#### Financial Statements

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

#### Capital asset activity of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

	Beginning Balance	Increases	Decreases	Ending Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated: Land\$	500,000	\$	\$	\$ 500,000
Capital assets being depreciated:				
Building	4,166,000	-	-	4,166,000
Building addition	2,292,321	-	-	2,292,321
Building and design	353,218	-	-	353,218
Equipment and instructional materials	712,034	88,707	-	800,741
Leasehold improvements	983,307	8,140		991,447
Total capital assets being depreciated	8,506,880	96,847		8,603,727
Less accumulated depreciation for:				
Building	(1,510,175)	(104,150)	-	(1,614,325)
Building addition	(257,690)	(57,308)	-	(314,998)
Building and design	(43,157)	(10,281)	-	(53,438)
Equipment and instructional materials	(473,688)	(76,935)	-	(550,623)
Leasehold improvements	(274,231)	(63,326)		(337,557)
Total accumulated depreciation	(2,558,941)	(312,000)		(2,870,941)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	5,947,939	(215,153)		5,732,786
Total capital assets, net\$	6,447,939	\$ (215,153)	\$	\$ 6,232,786

#### NOTE 4 – GRANTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Grants and other receivables at June 30, 2022 and 2021, are as follows:

	June 30, 2022	June 30, 2021
Receivables:		
Commonwealth of Massachusetts\$	195,804	\$ 89,404
Departmental and other	20,551	4,206
Total\$	216,355	\$ 93,610

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM FINANCING

State law permits the PVPA, under the provisions of Chapter 71, Section 89 (j) (6), to authorize indebtedness with repayment terms not to exceed the duration of the School's Charter, unless approved by the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education. The PVPA did not have authorized and unissued debt at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The Friends entered into an agreement with the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (MDFA) for the purchase of the land and building upon which the School's facilities are located. The MDFA approved the issuance of eighteen-year tax-exempt bonds that were issued on January 6, 2006, in the amount of \$3,800,000 that the Friends used to acquire the land and building. On June 1, 2014, the Friends borrowed \$4,260,000 in the form of MDFA Series 2014 Revenue Bonds. The proceeds from the bond were used to refinance the outstanding MDFA Series 2006 Revenue Bonds, and to fund additional building improvements. The 2014 bond matures on June 26, 2044. The interest rate is 3.49% and is adjusted by the bank every ten years. The bonds are secured by the building located on 15 Mulligan Drive.

The School is required to maintain a combined minimum debt service ratio of 1.25:1.0, measured on an annual basis. As of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the School was in compliance with this covenant.

PVPA has guaranteed the above debt for the Friends. In the event that the Friends defaults, PVPA would be required to perform under this guarantee. PVPA does not have any recourse against the Friends.

Details related to the Friends outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related debt service requirements are as follows:

Project	Maturities Through	5	Original Loan Amount	Outstanding at June 30, 2022	Outstanding at June 30, 2021		
Land and buidling acquisition	2044	\$_	4,260,000 \$	3,414,932 \$	3,522,734		
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs				(43,985)	(45,985)		
Total Bonds Payable, net		••••	\$	3,370,947 \$	3,476,749		

Debt service requirements for principal in future fiscal years are as follows:

Year	Principal	Interest	Total
2023\$	111,685 \$	119,043 \$	230,728
2024	115,386	115,342	230,728
2025	119,852	110,876	230,728
2026	124,162	106,566	230,728
2027	128,627	102,101	230,728
2028 to 2032	715,427	438,212	1,153,639
2033 to 2037	854,039	299,605	1,153,644
2038 to 2042	1,019,135	137,595	1,156,730
2043 to 2044	226,619	4,378	230,997
-			
Total\$	3,414,932 \$	1,433,718 \$	4,848,650

See Note 7 for other related matters.

Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School

#### Notes to Financial Statements

#### Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

#### NOTE 6 – LINE OF CREDIT

PVPA has a demand line of credit (limit of \$450,000) with a bank. The line of credit must have a zero balance for a minimum of thirty consecutive days during each calendar year. The existing loan documents allow the line to remain open until the bank makes a demand. Interest is calculated on the daily unpaid principal of all amounts owing in PVPA's loan account, floating at 'base rate' plus 1.0% percent per annum. As of June 30, 2022, and 2021, there was no balance due on the line of credit.

#### NOTE 7 – LEASES

PVPA leases the school building (including parking areas and land) from the Friends under a lease agreement. The lease began June 7, 2004, and has been amended several times. Under the most recent amendment, the lease expires on June 30, 2044. PVPA has an option to terminate this lease if its charter is not renewed or if the state tuition allocation is reduced by 10%.

Rent expense related to this lease was \$300,726 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Future minimum annual lease payments will be a fixed amount of \$300,726 until the lease expires.

#### NOTE 8 – PENSION PLAN

The School is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on behalf of municipal teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter schools, educational collaboratives and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth's reporting entity and the audited financial report may be obtained by visiting <u>http://www.mass.gov/osc/publications-and-reports/financial-reports/</u>.

Participants and the School are exempt from Federal social security taxes for these employees. Benefits vest fully after 10 years of qualified employment. An employee may receive retirement benefits after 20 years of service or 10 years of service having attained age 55. Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute 8% to 11% of their salaries.

#### Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the School to the MTRS. Therefore, the School is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions* and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor in MTRS. Since the School does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided contributions have been allocated based on each employer's covered payroll to the total covered payroll of employers in MTRS as of the measurement date of June 30, 2021. The School's portion of the collective pension expense, contributed by the Commonwealth, of \$713,674 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenue and pension benefits in the current fiscal year. The portion of the Commonwealth's collective net pension liability associated with the School is \$8,893,590 as of the measurement date.

The School also offers a voluntary retirement plan which allows eligible employees to save on a tax deferred basis for retirement. The School does not make contributions to the supplemental retirement savings plan.

#### Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

#### NOTE 9 – RISK FINANCING

The PVPA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the PVPA carries commercial insurance. The PVPA participates in premium-based health care plans for its employees.

Friends has no employees and requires the PVPA to maintain insurance coverage on the building and contents.

#### **NOTE 10 – CONTINGENCIES**

The School participates in a number of federal and state award programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

In the course of its operations various legal actions and claims may occur. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. At June 30, 2022, management is not aware of any pending or outstanding claims.

#### NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School has evaluated subsequent events through \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were issued. There are no recognized subsequent events, events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of net position date, or non-recognized subsequent events, or events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement of net position date, which are necessary to disclose to keep the financial statements from being misleading.

#### NOTE 12 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are two employees of PVPA who are also voting Board members. Total compensation paid to these employees in 2022 amounted to \$85,201 and \$102,030 in 2021.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, amounts due to PVPA from the Friends totaled \$191,743.

#### NOTE 13 – IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

During 2022, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

- GASB <u>Statement #87</u>, Leases. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.
- GASB <u>Statement #89</u>, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.
- GASB Statement #92, Omnibus 2020. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.
- GASB <u>Statement #93</u>, *Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates*. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.

#### Notes to Financial Statements

• GASB <u>Statement #97</u>, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

- The GASB issued <u>Statement #91</u>, *Conduit Debt Obligations*, which is required to be implemented in 2023.
- The GASB issued <u>Statement #94</u>, *Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements*, which is required to be implemented in 2023.
- The GASB issued <u>Statement #96</u>, *Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements*, which is required to be implemented in 2023.
- The GASB issued <u>Statement #99</u>, *Omnibus 2022*, which is required to be implemented in 2023.
- The GASB issued <u>Statement #100</u>, *Accounting Changes and Error Corrections*, which is required to be implemented in 2024.
- The GASB issued <u>Statement #101</u>, *Compensated Absences*, which is required to be implemented in 2025.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the basic financial statements.



# **Required Supplementary Information**

# **Pension Plan Schedule**

The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers' Contributory Retirement System presents multi-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the School along with related ratios.

This schedule is intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

#### SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Year	Commonwealth's 100% Share of the Associated Net Pension Liability	Expense and Revenue Recognized for the Commonwealth's Support	Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Liability
2022\$	8,893,590	\$ 713,674	62.03%
2021	12,182,810	1,504,752	50.67%
2020	11,529,144	1,398,109	53.95%
2019	10,368,216	1,050,669	54.84%
2018	10,132,494	1,057,558	54.25%
2017	9,236,690	942,203	52.73%
2016	8,565,830	694,765	55.38%
2015	6,338,217	440,346	61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years. Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2022

#### NOTE A – PENSION PLAN

#### A. Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liabilities

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which creates a special funding situation. Since the School does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with the School; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense recognized by the School; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.



# **Combining Statements**

#### COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

#### JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS	PVPA	. –	Friends of PVPA	_	Combining Adjustments	Combining Total June 30, 2022
CURRENT:						
Cash and cash equivalents\$	2,952,797	\$	533,000	\$	-	\$ 3,485,797
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:						
Departmental and other	15,301		5,250		-	20,551
Intergovernmental	195,804		-		-	195,804
Due from related party	191,743		-		(191,743)	-
Prepaid expense	12,125		-	_	-	12,125
Total current assets	3,367,770		538,250	_	(191,743)	3,714,277
NONCURRENT:						
Capital assets, nondepreciable	-		500,000		-	500,000
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation	805,316	· -	4,777,612	_	-	5,582,928
Total noncurrent assets	805,316		5,277,612	_		6,082,928
TOTAL ASSETS	4,173,086		5,815,862	_	(191,743)	9,797,205
LIABILITIES CURRENT:						
Accounts payable	7,659					7.659
Accounts payable	348,906				-	348,906
Accrued expense	8,811		-		-	8,811
Due to related party			191,743		(191,743)	-
Other liabilities	1,627		-		-	1.627
Unearned revenue	20,773		-		-	20,773
Bonds payable			111,685	_	-	111,685
Total current liabilities	387,776	. <u> </u>	303,428	_	(191,743)	499,461
NONCURRENT:						
Bonds payable	-	· _	3,259,262	_	-	3,259,262
TOTAL LIABILITIES	387,776		3,562,690	_	(191,743)	3,758,723
NET POSITION						
Net investment in capital assets	805,316		1,906,665		-	2,711,981
Unrestricted	2,979,994	· -	346,507	_		3,326,501
TOTAL NET POSITION \$	3,785,310	\$	2,253,172	\$_		\$ 6,038,482

#### COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

#### YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	PVPA		Friends of PVPA	Combining Adjustments	_	Combining Total June 30, 2022
DPERATING REVENUES:						
State allocation - tuition \$		\$	-	\$ -	\$	6,512,383
Federal and state grants	673,740		-	-		673,740
Student activities	25,262		-	-		25,262
Transportation	68,128		-	-		68,128
Rent Nonemployer pension contributions	- 713,674		300,726	(300,726)		- 713,674
Performing arts productions	15,127		-	-		15,074
Total operating revenues	8,008,314		300,726	(300,726)		8,008,314
					_	
PERATING EXPENSES: Current:						
Personnel	4 162 127					4,163,137
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits	4,163,137 841,142		-	-		4,103,137 841,142
Pension benefits	713,674		-	-		713,674
			-	-		
Advertising and recruiting.	17,262		-	-		17,262
Performing arts productions	92,852		-	-		92,852
Classroom materials	43,437		-	-		43,437
Technology	41,320		-	-		41,320
Academic support	34,252		-	-		34,252
Consultants and stipends	147,660		-	-		147,660
Grants	214,153		6,009	(6,009)		214,153
Professional fees	36,625		4,500	-		41,125
Office supplies	5,181		-	-		5,181
Testing/assessment	3,290		-	-		3,290
Insurance	40,711		-	-		40,711
Student activities	50,723		-	-		50,723
Student transportation	177,064		-	-		177,064
Depreciation	110,954		195,503	-		306,457
Food services	6,614		-	-		6,614
Professional development	14,494		-	-		14,494
Travel and meetings	5,051		-	-		5,051
Utilities	74,428		-	-		74,428
Memberships and subscriptions	46,422		-	-		46,422
Leases - school building	300,726		-	(300,726)		
Maintenance - facilities	292,779		-	-		292,779
Other	2,689		-	-		2,689
Printing, copying and postage	26,748		-	-		26,748
Payroll service/bank fees	22,399		434	-		22,833
Nurse supplies	8,276	_	-	-	_	8,276
Total operating expenses	7,534,063		206,446	(306,735)	_	7,433,774
Operating income (loss)	474,251	_	94,280	6,009	_	574,540
IONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):						
Interest income	5,312		38	-		5,350
Contributions	35,579		22,081	(6,009)		51,651
Other income	39,716		-	-		39,716
Interest expense	-		(124,927)	-		(124,927
Fundraising expense	(835)		(15,247)	-	_	(16,082
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net	79,772		(118,055)	(6,009)	_	(44,292
Change in net position	554,023		(23,775)	-		530,248
Net position at beginning of year	3,231,287	_	2,276,947	-	_	5,508,234



# Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

#### REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

#### Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School South Hadley, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2022.

#### **Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

#### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

\_\_\_\_\_, 2022



This page intentionally left blank.



# **Board Acceptance**

#### ACCEPTANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

We, the Board of Trustees of Pioneer Valley Performing Arts Charter Public School, have voted to accept the representations of management and the expression of the opinions made by Powers & Sullivan, LLC as embodied in the financial statements, supplemental schedules and independent auditor's report for the year ended June 30, 2022.

We also certify that the representations made by management and the disclosures in the financial statements are accurate and have been correctly and completely disclosed as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the *Commonwealth of Massachusetts Charter School Recommended Audit Guide* for the period ended June 30, 2022.